Brooks, F. Fairview, Tile Kiln hill Browning, Geo. 2 Brooks cots. Blean Browning, T. W. The Peacock

Carey, William, School lane Chapman, J. W. Rose Cot. Tyler hill Chappell, Alfred, Nightingale Hall Chappell, E. Oakwell Bungalow Clift, W. H. Brierley, Tile Kiln lane Cook, J. Royal Oak Cottage Coultrip, H. Smith's cottages Court, Sidney G. School lane Cronin, W. S. School lane Cross, William, Blean Common

Daniels, James, The Bungalow, Honey Daniels, T. Well Court Road Cottage Dicker, A. Oakwell Farm cottages Dorrington, W. C. Hare and Hounds Douglas, F. The Bungalow, Chapel In Drapper, H. S. Tyler hill

Easton, E. D. 1 Hoath cottages

Fedarb, E. 4 Hoath Court cottages Fisher, F. W. Clifton Cottage Ford, Percy, dairyman, Laburnum Villa, Blean Fox, Mrs. Fairview Francis, Mrs. Meadow Grange

Gammon, J. Blean Bottom Gilbert, Fredk. 1 Poplar cottages Giles, F. M. Well Court Giles, P. J. Well Court Cottage Goddard, W. J. Prior Lodge Goodban, Thos. School lane Goodban, H. (Woodlands) School lane Goodban, J. 1 Glover's Cottage Goodwin, Wm. Jessamine Cottage, Tyler Hill road

Goodwin, Norman, School lane Goodwin, T. W. Monkey Court Farm Newman, John, 3 Glovers Cottage Gore, Horace, The Royal Oak Graham, Joseph. Lucketts Farm Griggs, G. E. Tyler hill Growns, Ernest, Mill House Growns, Percy, market gardener, School lane

Hambrook, H. T. The Red Lion Harnden, W. The Kiln cottages Hart, S. D. Mill Cottage Hilton, Mrs. Farewell Hogbin, Aaron, gen. shop, Wood Hogbin, William T. Woodville Holttum, Chas. bootmkr. Post Q Hopkins, G. R. Sunnyside House Hopkins, Thomas and Co. carriers general dealers, Blean bottom Hopkins, Miss, The Stores Hovery, Harry S. School lane Hubbard, John, Montrose House Hudson, T. W. Honeysuckle Cotta Hughes, Edward, Sunnyside Cotte Hulse, H. Honey hill

Jennison, A. J. Church Farm cots. Jordan, E. D. The Forge Jordan, Frank, Blean Bottom Jull, W. H. 1 Poplar cottages

Keir, John, farmer, Hoath Court Kelk, S. H. Chapel lane Kennett, G. H. Hall House, Tyler Hill road Kennett, W. A. (Greenacre) Key, R. J. Hillside, Blean Kingsnorth, J. T. Denstrood Farm Kirby, Thomas, Monkey Court Knight, A. Peacock cots. School lane

Lewis, Mary, Honey hill Lilley, F. J. Clifton Cottage Love, Mrs. School lane, Blean Com.

Marsh, Alfred, Tyler hill Mead, F. H. E. Sunny Mead, Tyler h Medhurst, A. H. Clowes Wood Mockett, Mrs. A. M. Clowes Hous Mount, G. T. Hospital Cottage, Den stroude

Neame, Edward, Tyler hill Nesbit, Henry, Honey hill

Ongley, S. C. Tile Kiln cottages

Packham, W. T. Colthup's Bungalow, Tyler hill Parker, James, Hall House, Blean Bin

Parker, J. Pear Tree Pay, John, jun. Oakwell Farm Pelham, W. Denstroude Phillips, Comm. Mill House Pilcher, F. H. Honey hill Pout, Arthur, Tyler hill Pout, H. Tyler hill Powell, C. G. Amery Court Price, Albert, farmer, Victoria Dairy, Blean Common Price, I. Julia Cottage Price, N. G. Bungalow, Honey hill Price, R. H. Bullers Court Price, William, Yew Trees Priest, G. W. West View Prior, G. A. Thatched Cottage, Tyler

Radburn, Charles, Honey hill Ratcliffe, C. Straylees Farm Revison, W. (Rowan) Honey hill Reynolds, Mrs. Plommers Farm Rush, R. E. Oakwell Farm

Hill road

Saddleton, C. J. (Charbert) Chapel In Sandy, William, Box Tree Bungalow, Blean Common Scott, J. H. Clowes House, Chapel In Sims, Arthur, Fernleigh, Honey hill Solly, W. J. Tyler hill Stapley, A. T. Blean House Stockbridge, A. S. Oakwell Farm Cot.

Tappenden, E. H. Forest House Taylor, H. G. Boxtree Villa Taylor, W. Orchard House, Chapel In | Young, E. Denstroud road

Thompson, R. S. Meadow Grange Honey hill Tilbee, W. S. Yew Tree House Trivett, F. (The Bungalow) Trotter, N. B. Honey hill Trueman, Mrs. (Oakwell) Tulloch, H. F. P. Tyler Hill House Twyman, W. E. 3 Hoath Court cots.

Upton, T. Church Farm cottages

Vaugham, L. The Firs

Wallis, A. F. Hillside Blean Wallis, A. H. Honey Hill Farm Wallis, S. T. Chapel lane Wallis, W. J. Smiths cottages Wanstall, Charles, Chapel lane Waters, Thomas, Blean Bottom Webb, W. J. Halt Cottage, Tyler hill Weldon, Donald, Blean Hyrst Cottage Wells, F. A. J. Mount Pleasant Farm Wells, F. J. Mount Pleasant Farm White, William, Honey hill Windybank, A. J. Blean Hyrst Wood, Albert O. Hoath cottages Wood, E. R. Tile Kiln hill Wood, F. 2 Poplar cottages Wood, Joseph, Bearonsfield Cottage Wood, Percy, Chapel lane Wood, T. 1 Brook Cottage Wood, W. next Chapel Wood, Mrs. Hillside Farm, Bleam Common

BRIDGE.

About 3 miles from Canterbury on the main road to Dover. Post town, Canterbury. Station about half-amile distant on the Elham Valley line. The church is St. Peter. The living is a Vicarage annexed to that of Patrixbourne, and is held by the Rev. H. Knight (M.A.) The population is nearly 900. The village is lighted by gas.

Church of St. Peter Services: Sundays, 11, 6.30; Children's Service 1st Sun. in month at 3; Holy Communion 1st and 3rd Sun, at midday,

2nd and 4th at 8; Saints' days, Service at 11. Hymns, A. and M. Vicar, Rev. Hubert Knight (M.A.); Licensed Lay Reader, Mr. R. Wye; Churchwardens, Messrs, C. Wills and R. Wye.

Wesleyan Chapel-Services: 11,6.30 Bridge Parish Council-Chairman, Mr. C. Wills; Vice-Chairman, Mr. R. Friend; Councillors, Messrs. George Hawkins, H. G. Price, A. Taylor, and C. West. Clerk: Mr. E. G. Wood, A.L.A.A., 21 Burgate street, Canterbury.

KENNETT & SONS, Household Removals,

St. Dunstan's Street, Canterbury.

Workhouse (Bridge Union)-Master and Matron, Mr. and Mrs. Honney Chaplain, Rev. H. Knight. Med. Officer, A. T. Wilson, Esq. (M.B., B.S.). Relieving Officer, Mr. Wass.

Overseers Messrs. C. Hawkins, A. J. Castle, H. G. Price, A. Taylor,

Assist. Overseer and Clerk to Parish Akhurst, George, Union place Council—Mr. E. G. Wood, A. L. A. Allen, E. R. The Terrace 21 Burgate street, Canterbury.

Clerk to the Guardians Mr. T. L. Collard, Bridge.

Royal Oak Friendly Society-Meet ings 2nd Sat. in the month in the Anstey, J. (Sunnyside) Reading Room.

Cas Co.'s Office at the Red Lion-Chairman, Mr. R. Wye, Bridge Bailey, W. A. Dering road Sec., Mr. Charles Wills.

Baird, H. H. C. Sefton Villa

house, Plough and Harrow; Capt. Baylis, H. E. Mumpas cottages and Sec., Mr. C. Wills (Tele. 20)

Post, Money and Telegraph Office Bishop, John, Dering road (under Canterbury)—Subpostmaster Blundell, Herbert, Ivy House Mr. R. Castle. Letters delivered at Booth, George, 4 Filmer cottages 7 a.m. and 12.45 p.m.; despatched Bradley, Mrs. 5 Filmer cottages 11.15 a.m. and 7.45 p.m. Public Braiser, Albert, Vine Cottage Tele. Call Office. Wall Letter Box, Brice, Mrs. Plough and Harrow Inn

BRIDGE RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.

Adisham, A. Atkins; Barham, Bekesbourne, H. M. Baker; Bishopsbourne, G. K. Anderson, J.P.; Cane, John Edward, Glen Falls Belsey & Rev. N. L. Lycett; Ford Carpenter, Fred. The Bungalow Hardres (Upper), W. A. Lochée, J.P. Castle, Richard, Post Office Ickham, Percy Champion; Kingston, Cave, A. W. Station House Rev. U. Potts; Littlebourne, G. Chidwick, Peter, Union road Buss; Nackington, G. G. Finn; Pa-Chidwick, Wm. White Horse Inn trixbourne, S. W. Mount; Petham, Churchyard, Henry, Bridge street
A. D. Collard; Stodmarsh, D. A. Coles, W. Belle Vue terrace Collard; Thanington Without, Wm. Collard, S. Great Pett lock; Wickhambreaux, J. Walter; Cowell, George, Vine cottages

Womenswould, T. Hume. All +1 above act as Guardians of the Bridge

Clerk to the Council Mr. T. L. Col lard, Little Bridge place.

Amos, Henry E. Union road Anderson, G. K. Esq. J.P., D.I Bridge House

Andrews, A. L. Middle Pett Cottage Apps, John W. 1 Filmer cottages Ayling, A. Riverside

Volunteer Fire Brigade Engine Barden, Rupert, Bourne Park Lodge bouse Plough and Harrow, Cant Barron, J. chemist, Bridge street Bell, W. 3 Portland terrace Railway Station (Elham Valley Benefield, Henry, 1 Brewery lane line)—Mr. A. W. Cave. Bishop, Mrs. Union road Bridgland. Albert, builder and under

taker, 1 Portland terrace Brooks, Mrs. Brick Noggin Bundock, W. Flint Cottage Burton, Geo. Lower Cottage, Bridge Hill House Bushell, E. J. Bridge street

Bridge, C. Wills; Chartham, T. Card, Wm. J. (P.S.) 2 Albert terrace wich, D. Brice; Harbledown, Capt Carpenter, J. A. 2 Portland terrace H.W. Metcalf, R.N., O.B.E.; Hardres Carpenter, Thomas, Belle Vue terrace (Lower), Col. M. Spencer, C.M.G.; Castle, Arthur J. baker, Bridge street Lillywhite; Waltham, W. H. Hor Collard, Thos. L. Little Bridge place Cowell, Leslie Geo. Bridge street Cox, G. Union road Croft, Mrs. 1 Sefton villas Calver, T. Park View, Brick lane Cutting, Robert, Riverside

Decent. W. C. grocer, Bridge street Dimond. Herbert. Bridge street Divers, W. C. Glen Falls Down, F., T. Bridge street Dunk, F. Edward, Bridge street

Edward, John, 3 Primrose alley Edwards, B. W. butcher, Bridge street Edwards, Mrs. Union road Epps, E. C. Waterloo Cottage

Fairbrass, Chas. W. greenger. Bridge st Newman, Misses, Alexandra House Fairbrass, F. W. Union road Fairbrass, George, jun. Union place Featherstone, Thos. 1 Waterloo cots. Fenn, John, plumber, 1 Albert terrace File, John, Little Eaton Farm File, Norman, Little Pett Farm Ford, Wm. Park villas, Union place Foster, Mrs. Filmer House Francis, Harry, Dering road Francis, Julian Ernest, 4 Albert ter. Francis, Kirby, Union road French, Edward, Bourne Park cots. Friend, John, Bridge street Friend, R. Dering road Friend, Miss, Union road Fuller, W. E. Bridge Place Lodge

Gaunt, E. V. B. Filmer House Gilbert, S. blacksmith, The Forge Gimber, Frederick, 2 Brook place Gore, Albert, Bridge street

Hadlow, A. Bridge street Harvey, Mrs. Brook place Hatcher, H. E. Middle Pett Farm Hawkes, W. G. Middle Pett Farm Hawkins, G. A. draper, Riverdale Hinkley, Mrs. 9 Brewery lane Hoare, John, 2 Brewery lane Hogben, S. Bridge street Hollands, Charles, Union road Hopkins, T. Woodbine Cottage Horton, Wm. 1 Portland terrace Honney, Mr. and Mrs. master and Sole, A. H. 1 Primrose alley matron, Bridge Workhouse

Huggett, Mrs. Bridge street Humphrey, J. Bridge street

Jarvis, J. M. Filmer cottages Johnson, F. 3 Albert terrace Jones, Albert, Rose Dale Villa

Keeler, E. Dering road Keeler, William J. Bridge street Kennett, George, Primrose alley Knight, W. H. Bridge street

Laming, H. G. Church House Laming, Robt. Stephen, Church House Lane, Mrs. M. Pett Bottom

Marsh, Albert, Hillside Cottage McDougall, W. Bridge street Murphy, F. J. Union place

Nelson, T.B. 5 Albert terrace

O'Connell, J. Union road Ovenden, Joseph, Bridge street Ovenden, Thomas W. 6 Brook place Ovenden, William, Bridge Hill gardens

Partridge, W. T. Pett Farm cottages Patterson, C. F. Union road Pegden, Albert, 3 Filmer cottages Pegden, George Wm. 4 Brewery lane Petts, C. T. Pett Bottom Petts, George Q. Pett Bottom Philpott, Percy, 5 Brewery lane Piper, Charles, Dering road Pooley, Albert, Filmer road Price, H. G. grocer, Bridge street Price, H. T. Bridge street Prickett, G. beer retailer, Dering road Punnett, T. hairdresser, Bridge street

Ramsey, Miss, East Bridge House Rayner, S. I Dering road Reynolds, Henry, Union road Richards, Philip, Bridge street Ritchie, D. Union cottages Rose, E. Belle Vue terrace Russell, J. Brick Noggin

Sawkings, Henry, Union road Slater, James, Dale villas Small, Mrs. Lynton cottages, Bridge st Sneller, A. J. 6 Albert terrace Soutan, Edward, 2 Filmer cottages Sperling, The Misses (Rosebank) High st Stone, George, Bridge Farm

Stone, G. H. Dale villas

Tassell, James A. Weston villas Tasell, Percy J. (Wychelm) Tassell, Miss, Gordon House
Taylor and Son, coal merchants,
Brookside Lodge Tomlin, C. P. Lynton House Tuckey, W. Bridge street Turneaux, T. G. C. Brick Noggin Tutt, Mrs. Union road

Uden, William, Pett Farm

Vigden, George, Gordon House Vinten, C. H. 6 Brewery lane

Stone, G. H. Dale villas
Stone, John, Union road
Sutton, Mrs. Woodman's Arms, Pott
Bottom
Swan, John, Bridge street
Swan, Wm. confectioner, Bridge street
Whale, Thomas, 6 Filmer cottages
Whittaker, Fredk Wm. Woodbine Co
Willett, S. W. 8 Brewery, lane
Willis, W. J. Middle Pett
Wills, G. soo Bridge Gas Co, and Fil Wills, C. sec. Bridge Gas Co., and Fire

Brigade, 2 The Terrace
Wilson, Dr. A. T. Bridge street
Wilson, H. J. Brook place
Wilson, J. B. E. Esq. Bridge street Wilson, W. H. Union road Wilson, Mrs. Bridge street Wonfor, James, Bridge street Worrell, Chas. Henry, 5 The Terrace Wraight, Samuel, Brook place Wright, Mrs. Filmer road Wyborn, Herbert J. Bridge street Underwood, Fredk. J. 6 Union road Wye, Robert, Weston villas, Bridge, assist. overseer for Patrixbourne:

house agent Wye, Miss, infants' mistress, Natal.

BROOMFIELD.

Situate about two miles from Herne | Finch, S. 1 Colvill cottages Bay; is approached from Herne Mill or Mickleburgh Hill. Postal district, Herne Bay.

Margate Road to Upstreet

Names arranged alphabetically.

Baker, Richard, Chapel cottages Bartlett, C. Broomfield Stores Bayford, - 3 Blean View Bish, William, Black cottages Boyle, Harry Edward, 10 Blean view Brand, Frank, Parsonage Farm

Champion, Henry, Broomfield Collins, R. C. 1 Pond Cottage Congregational Mission Church Coulson, Thos. Colvill, general shop

Dale, Edmund, Chapel cottages Finch, George, senr. 3 Belle Vue cots. Finch, George, junr. Malthouse cots. Flint, Frank, baker, Pond cottages Foad, Henry, Chapel cottages Foreman, Fredk. C. 1 Blean view Francis, Charles, Willow Farm, Fright, Alfred S. 2 Belle Vue cots.

Garlinge, John, Sayers cottages Gifford, Edwin, 2 Portd Cottage Gore, H. Sillwood cottages

Hammond, E. Sayers cottages Hammond, J. bootmaker Hewitt, H. (Broomfield Hall Lodge) Hines, Chas. Walter, 5 Blean view Holman, Sidney Chas. 9 Blean view Hougham, John, Ivy Cottage

Illingworth, Major H. S. Broomfield House

Joslin, F. Chapel cottages Keen, William (Rowan Cottage)

Go to SKINNERS, 1 Guildhall Street, Canterbury, for WOOLLEN COSTUMES and DRESSES. Telephone 495

mard, Edward, 7 Blean view William, Sillwood Cottage e A. G. Broomfield House

arsh. Thos. Malthouse cottages atthews, Jane, Gothic House urton, Chas. The Bungalow

orris, Fredk. 5 Blean view

Sullivan, Cornelius, 4 Blean view

arks, Frederick, Chapel cottages ort, Alfred, 8 Blean view ort. Frank, Meadow Cottage ort, Peter, sen. Goldfinch Farm Robinson, H. Malthouse cottages

Scrivens, George, Sillwood cottages Spratt, Frank, Hoopers Farm Steed, Albert, Black Cottage Steed, Mrs. Rose cottages

Tritton, Alfred, 3 Pond cottages

Webb, Walter, Rose Cottage Well, Wm. 2 Colvill cottages Whitchurch, W. Huntsman and Horn Whitehead, John, Fern Lodge Wilmshurst, Stephen, 2 Blean view Wise, James, Elder cottages

Young, Ernest Henry, Spicers Farm

CHARTHAM.

ost town, Canterbury. Population 3000. Station on the South-Eastern Railway.

ast Kent Mental Hospital-Medical Supt., Dr. M. A. Collins; Assist. Medical Officers, Dr. Topham, Dr. A. H. Addiscoot, and Dr. S. C. Fenwick; Chaplain, Rev. W. T. Clements, M.A. Clerk (Visitors), Mr. H. Fielding : Clerk & Steward. Mr. P. H. Arthur; Asst. Clerk and Steward, Mr. R. Wood; Matron, Miss Dowson; Asst. Matron, Miss Watson; Dispenser, Mr. C. Wilson; Engineer, Frederick Clough; Head Male Attendant, Mr. G. C. Smith; Dep. Head Attendant, W. Wildash

hurch of St. Mary—Services: Sundays, Holy Communion, 8.30, and 1st Sun. after Morning Prayer, and 5th Sun. after Evening Prayer; Matins, Litany and Sermon, 11; Evensong and Sermon, 6.30; Children's Service, 3. Morning Service daily, 8.30 except Fri. (10.30), and Wednesday (7 p.m.). Hymns, 4. and M. Rector, Rev. Norman L. Lycett (M.A.); Churchwardens, Mr Percy Mount and Mr. Wm. Parfitt. Clerk, Mr. W. H. Stock.

rimitive Methodist Chapel, Chartham Hatch-Services: Sun., 2.30. 6; Shalmsford street, 2.30 and 6.

Wesleyan Chapel-Services: Sundays, 10.30 and 6.

Salvation Army Barracks, Shalmsford street

Overseers-Messrs. Belsey, Deal and Pay.

Assist. Overseer-Mr. C. Norris.

Council Schools-Managers, Messrs. T. Belsey, P. Mount, Dr. H. G. Rashleigh and Arnold Hugh. Clerk, Mr. F. S. Cloke, Sandwich, Attendance Officer, Mr. W. Watts.

Council Schools (mixed) - Master. Mr E. Lane.

Chartham Hatch School-Mistress, Mrs Wood.

Chartham Parish Council-Chairman, Mr. T. Belsey; Couns., Messrs. H. Ballard, T. Belsey, J. Carr, Deal, R. Fearn, Jordan, Rev. N. L. Lycett, F. G. Smith, Ernest Terry and Vidgen. Clerk, Mr. G. Norris.

Chartham Burial Board-Committee, members of the Parish Council; Clerk, Mr. G. Norris; Curator, Mr. A. Hubbard.

National Deposit Friendly Society-183 members. Chairman of District Committee, Mr. Chas. Cork: Sec., Mr. Ernest Watson.

DIRECTORY.

KENT.

BEKESBOURNE.

Stubbersfield Alfred, greengrocer, 139 Churchfields road Stubbs College (Hedley Stubbs, principal), 110 Beckenham road

Sumner Daniel, upholsterer, 72 Bromley road. T N

Bromley 1695
Sutton Ernest, insurance agent, 102 Elmers End road
Sydenham Albion Football Club (G. Bennett, hon. sec.);
ground, Croydon road

ground, Croydon road

Syme & Duncan Limited, builders, 22 Blakeney road.

T N Bromley 581

Symes Edith (Miss), teacher of music, 87 Blandford rd

Taber Wesley, fruitr. 19 Albemarle rd. T N Bromley 2711

Taggart John Percy, confectioner, 95 Elmers End road

Tarbard Walt. Hy. Rising Sun P.H. Up. Elmers End rd

Taylor Alfred, tailor, 66 Mackenzie road

Taylor Frederick Alfred, tailor, 69 Beckenham road

Tegg John, insurance agent, 2 St. Margaret's road

Thoburn Hugh F. house agent, Kent House station, 70

Barnmead road. T N Sydenham 1529

Thornton Tom William, stationer, & publisher of the

"Beckenham Journal," 40, 42 & 44 High street

Tickner John, station master, Clock House station,

Beckenham road; Beckenham Junction; New Beckenham & Kent House, Southend road

ham & Kent House, Southend road
Tidswell Jarvis, motor engineer, Oakhill garage, Bromley road. T N Bromley 258

Tidswell Jarvis, motor engineer, Oakhill garage, Bromley road. T N Bromley 258
Timmis & Kirk, chemists, 91 High st. T N Bromley 174
Tomei & Sons, modellers, 38 St. John's road
Tostevin William Robert, cycle repairer, Croydon road
Town Elizh. (Mrs.), grocer, 101 & 103 Church Fields rd
Town John, coal dealer, 99 Church Fields road
Tozer Albert, greengrocer, 106 High street
Tranter Thomas Henry M.R.C.V.S. veterinary surgeon,
30 High street. T N Bromley 430
Trapnell Francis Cyril M.D., B.Ch.Camb., M.R.C.S.,
L.R.C.P. physician & surgeon (firm, Bolus & Trapnell), 23 Beckenham road. T N Bromley 1228
Trindall William, blacksmith, 55a, High street. T.N.
Bromley 2061

Trindal William, blacksmith, 55a, High street. T.N. Bromley 2061

Trust Houses Ltd. Greyhound P.H. 49 High street. T.N. Bromley 2201

Tucker Arthur, insurance agent, 448 Blandford road

Tuckett Helen (Miss), draper, 71 Kent House road

Tulse Hill Hockey Club (R. G. Percival, hon. sec.), King's Hall road

King's Hall road
Turner & Co. oilmen, 211 Beckenham road (T N Bromley 2342) & ironmongers, 50 High st. T N Bromley 1377
Turner Florence (Mrs.), music dealer, 11 Victoria buildings, Beckenham road
Tyne Main Coal Co. Ltd. Railway station, Southend rd tUnderwood William James, decorator, 66 Station road
United Services Club (John A. Little, sec.), High street
Vaile Bros.haulage contractors, High st. T N Bromley 262
Vaile Bowland William Henry, grocer, 10 Chancery lane
Valeting Service (The) (J. M. Blair), dyers & cleaners,
17 Albemarle road. T N Bromley 2727
Victoria Wine Co. wine & spirit merchants, 3 Rectory rd
Vincent John Dunn, optician, 287 Beckenham road
Walford & Son, french polishers, 162 Blandford road
fWall Edward & Son, boot makers, 28 Station road
Wall Edmund, ale&porter mer. 37 Croydon rd. Elmers end

Wall Edmund, alexporter mer. 37 Croydon rd. Elmers end BEKESBOURNE (or Beakesbourne) is a small parish on the Little Stour, with a station on the Southern railway, 3 miles east-south-east from Canterbury and 59 from London by road and 64½ by railway, in the Canterbury division of the county, lathe of St. Augustine, hundred and union of Bridge, petty sessional division and county court district of Canterbury, rural deanery of East Bridge and archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury; it is also partly in the city and county of the city of Canterbury. This parish is a member of the Cinque port of Hastings and was formerly a borough. The church of St. Peter is in the Norman, Early English and later styles, and has a tower containing 6 bells, the gift of Miss Gipps: in the church are memorials to the families of Palmer, Hales, Fagge, Eden and Gardner and various memorial windows: the church was restored in 1882-8, and has 150 sittings. In the centre of the new churchyard is a memorial to the 12 parishioners who fell in the Great War, 1914-18; the cost was defrayed by public subscription. The register dates from the year 1558. The living is a vicarage, net income £317, with residence, in the gift of

Walters Frank Joseph, tailor, 142 Elmers End road Ward Florence (Mrs.), confectioner, 104 High street Ware & Brooks, plumbers, Church road Warrilow Harriett (Mrs.), nurse, 2 Mackenzie road Weaver Muriel V. (Mrs.), stationer, & post office, 68

Weaver Muriel V. (Mrs.), stationer, & post Marie Beckenham road
Beckenham road
Webb Walton Ltd. oilmen, 227 Beckenham road
tWebb Reginald, printer, 51 Parish lane
tWebb William John, shopkeeper, 15 Station road
Welch James Reader, solicitor & commissioner for oaths,

52 Kings Hall road
†Welch John, greengrocer, 31 Thesiger road
Welford's Surrey Dairies Ltd. dairymen, 15 High street
(T N Bromley 237); 168 Croydon road; 91 Avenue
road; 28 Beckenham road (T N Bromley 815); †21 &
23 Station road & 82 Elmers End road
Wells Richard Thomas, confectioner 82, & toy dealer 84,

High street

Wells Richard Thomas, contectioner 82, & toy dealer 84, High street
West Beckenham Conservative Club (George Dann, sec.), 185 Beckenham road. T N Bromley 256
West & Russell, joinery manufacturers, 21 & 23 Station road. T N Sydenham 3167
Westcott Naomie & Lydia (Misses), stationers, & post office, 89 Avenue road
Westerman Ernest, confectioner, 170 & 170a, Croydon rd
Westminster Bank Ltd. (branch) (Henry Allan Knight manager), 25 High street (T N Bromley 154); head office, 41 Lothbury, London E C 2
Weston Charles, Park tavern, 1 Station road
Weston Douglas, grocer, 25 Station road
Whelpton Edward Smith M.A., L.R.C.P.Lond., M.R.C.S.
Eng.physon.& surgn. 3 Beckenham rd. T N Bromley 376
Whitfield Edward Hy. Kent House tavern, Thesiger rd
Whittingdale Henry, stationer, 71 Croydon road
Wicks Edward, decorator, 61 Croydon road
Wilkinson Francis B. stationer, 249 Beckenham road

Wilkinson Francis B. stationer, 249 Beckenham road Wilkinson Francis B. stationer, 249 Beckenham road Williams George A. confectioner, 56 Beckenham road Williams Reginald S. cycle repairer, 39 Croydon road Williams Robert, insurance agent, 9 Thayer's Farm rd

Williams Robert, insurance agent, 9 Thayer's Farm rd Williams Robert, wine & spirit merchant, 98 Avenue rd Willson Henry, grocer, 194 Oroydon road †Wilson Alexander, shopkeeper, 5 Station road Wilson Henry R. boot repairer, 8 Fairfield road Windsor Geo. butcher, 33 High st. T N Bromley 1132 Winkup Evelyn (Mrs.), confectioner, 119 High street Winterson Elizabeth (Mrs.), stationer, 61 Beckenham rd Wood George, greengrocer, 82 Chancery lane Wood Walter, motor engineer, 520 Croydon road

Wood George, greengrocer, 8 Chancery lane
Wood Walter, motor engineer, 529 Croydon road
Wood William C. H. grocer, 527a, Croydon road
Woodgate John, boot dealer, 239 Beckenham road
Working Women's College (Miss F. Street, principal),
23 Rectory road. T N Bromley 25
Worley L. (Miss), confectioner, see Langdon & Worley
Worsfold Ebenezer, house decorator, 12 Eden road
Wright Brothers, estate agents, 97 Blandford road
Wright Hy.butcher,261Beckenham rd. T N Sydenhm.780
Wykes Walter Charles, outfitter, 111 High street
FYORK Harriett (Mrs.), dress maker, 2 Whateley road
Yorkshire Bakery, bakers, 108 High street

the Archbishop of Canterbury, and held since 1913 by the Rev. Richard Bevan Pyper M.A of Corpus Christi College, Cambridge. In this parish is the Sanatorium of the Bridge Rural District Council. The Old Palace, an ancient house, was formerly a country residence of the Archbishops of Canterbury. The Ecclesiastical Commissioners, the Marquess Conyngham and G. F. Dalton esq. are the principal landowners. The soil is gravel and chalk; subsoil, chalk. The chief crops are wheat, barley oats and hops. The area is 1,091 acres; rateable value, £2,173; the population in 1921 was 332 in the civil parish, and of the ecclesiastical parish in 1911, 361.

1911, 361. Parish Clerk, Henry Russ. Parish Clerk, Henry Russ.

Post Office, Railway station.—James Card, sub-postmaster. Letters through Canterbury, via Bridge.

The nearest money order office is at Bridge. The
telegraph office is at the railway station for collection,
& at Bridge for delivery of telegrams, 2 miles distant
Public Elementary School (mixed), for 83 children;
Miss Robinson, mistress

Railway Station, James Card, station master

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Raton Lt.-Col. Arnold, Sondes house.

T.N. Bridge 5

Elliot Capt. Lionel Noyes, The Old
Palace. T.N. Bridge 24

Hordern Miss, Cobham court. T.N.
Bridge 16

Pyper Rev. Richard Bevan M.A.

(vicar), Vicarage
Tassell Mrs. Bradbury, Wanstalls
Tiley George, The Bungalow
COMMERCIAL.

Baker Ernest William, farmer,
Parcongue form Parsonage farm

Richard Bevan M.A. Birchett John, farm bailiff to the trustees of the late Marquess Conyngham

COMMERCIAL.

Birchett John, farm bailiff to the trustees of the late Marquess of the late Marquess Commence of the late Marquess trustees of the late Conyngham, Estate office

Bridge Rural District Council Sanatorium (T. Louis Collard, clerk; Arth. Thos.Wilson M.B.,B.Ch. med. officer; Miss A. M. Souter, manageress)

Carpenter James, shopkeeper Farthing James, The Unicorn P.H. Hordern I. E. (Miss), farmer, Cobham court

Kemp Richard, farm bailiff to Henry Minter Baker esq. Measday William, Prince of Wales P.H. Munns William, Shopkeeper Newport James, carrier & coal mer

sion, union, county court district and rural deanery of Dartford and archdeaconry and diocese of Rochester, and within the jurisdiction of the Metropolitan Police. The parish extends to the banks of the Thames, and is The parish extends to the banks of the Thames, and is lighted by electricity by the Erith Urban Council, and supplied with water by the Metropolitan Water Board, Kent District. All Saints' church, Erith road, is of cut flints with stone dressings, in the Early English style, and has a western tower with spire containing a clock and one bell: there are four stained windows: the church will seat 600 persons, 280 sittings being free. The register dates from the year 1861. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £393, with residence, in the gift of trustees, and held since 1909 by the Rev. William Bichard Hartwright L.Th. of Hattield Hall, Durham, and surrogate. St. Augustine's was created a separate parish in 1917: the church, in St. Augustine's road, has 500 sittings. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £200, in the gift of the Bishop of Rochester, and has 500 sittings. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £200, in the gift of the Bishop of Rochester, and held since 1917 by the Rev. Thomas Clegg Whittle. There is a Congregational chapel, in Picardy road, erected in 1897 to seat 300. There are also two Baptist chapels, one in Bexley road, built in 1863, seating 350, and another in Upper Abbey road, erected in 1899, with 220 sittings, and a Strict Baptist chapel: there is also a Primitive Methodist chapel. The Salvation Army also have a hall here. The County Technical Institute and

BELVEDERE (or Lessness Heath) and Abbey Wood is an ecclesiastical parish, formed in 1361 from the civil parish of Erith; it has a station on the North Kent section of the Southern railway, and is 1 mile west from Erith, 4 north-west from Dartford and 12 from London, in the Dartford division of the county, hundred of Lessness, lathe of Sutton-at-Hone, petty sessional division, union, county court district and rural deanery of Dartford and archdeaconry and diocese of Rochester, and within the jurisdiction of the Metropolitan Police. Aged Merchant Seamen's Institution, in Belvedere park, Upper Park road, founded in 1856, and opened January, 1857, is pleasantly situated in 24 acres of ground, comanding a view of the river; it serves as a home for indigent merchant seamen, of not less than 60 years of age, and is available for 150 inmates: there are now about 100 pensioners, who are fed and clothed, and also about 540 cut-pensioners, each of whom receives £18 yearly, whilst there are over 200 widows and disabled seamen in receipt of allowance amounting to £4,500 per annum; Commander Walter H. Wilkes R.D., R.N.R.(retd.), house governor. In Belvedere Park is a masonic lodge

The population of the ecclesiastical parish in 1901 was 9,826, and in 1911, 9,288.

OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS, LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.

Post, M. O., T. & T. E. D. Office, 2 Station road, Belvedere (letters should have Frederick Wheeler, postmaster. Telegraph office closed on sundays

Town Sub-Post & M. O. Offices.

†Bexley road.—Miss Ada Mary Stapley, sub-postmistress
†Abbey Wood (Postal address, Abbey Wood S E 2).—

Mrs. Jane Elizabeth Farnhill, sub-postmistress
Coleman road.—Mrs. M. Burton, sub-postmistress
89 Lower road.—Allen G. Nash, sub-postmaster

Erith Urban District Sanatorium, Little Heath, Arthur

Erith Urban District Sanatorium, Little Heath, Arthur Edward Jerman M.B.Lond., M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P. Lond. medical supt; Miss H. Jones, nurse Main Drainage Works, L. C. C. Southern Outfall, E. J. Beal, supt; John Mead, marine supt; John William Hurst Biggs, chemist; William Robert Cretchley, clerk to station, Crossness, Abbey Wood Metropolitan Police Station, Woolwich road, R Division, Stat Divisional Lancett Foodball Code, R. Division,

Sub-Divisional Inspector Frederick Summers, 9 sergeants & 41 constables

Boyal Alfred Aged Merchant Seamen's Institution, Belvedere park, Upper Park road, Commander Walter H. Wilkes R.D., R.N.R.(retd.), house governor; Ernest L. Smith, sec.; Ryder Percival Nash O.B.E., F.R.C.S. Edin surgeon. Edin. surgeon

PUBLIC OFFICERS.

Begistrar of Births, Deaths & Marriages, Frederick J. Vickery, All Saints' Church room, Bexley road Turncock, Henry Fountain, 13 Woolwich road

PLACES OF WORSHIP.

All Saints' Church, Rev. William Richard Hartwright L.Th. vicar & surrogate
St. Augustine's Church, St. Augustine's road, Rev.
Thomas Clegg Whittle, vicar
St. Mary's Mission Room, Abbey Wood
Baptist, Bexley road, Rev. Richard Birch Hoyle A.T.S

Baptist, Upper Abbey road
Strict Baptist, Bedonwell hill
Congregational, Picardy road
Primitive Methodist, Picardy road (Erith & Belvedere Circuit), Rev. Thomas Harrison Salvation Army Hall, Gilbert road Salvation Army Hall, Harrow Manor way, Abbey Wood

COUNCIL SCHOOLS.

Controlled by Erith Education Committee.

Marked thus + is a Telegraph & Telegraph Money Order
Office.

PUBLIC ESTABLISHMENTS.

Neagle B.Sc. head master Technical Institute; Arthur T. Flux, organising sec.; C. Fred Lewis, assistant sec Belvedere, Bedwell road (boys), built in 1875 & enlarged in 1889 & 1906, for 280 children; William G. Maybury, master

Central Schools, Lower road, built in 1919, for 240 boys & 240 girls; J. Butler, master; Miss H. A. Fleet, mistress

Picardy, Lower road, Belvedere, built in 1889 & enlarged in 1892, & with temporary premises, for 477 boys & 540 girls; Fred J. Bell, master; Miss C. H. Williams, mistress

Picardy, Lower road, Belvedere (junior mixed), built in

rearry, Lower road, Belvedere (junior mixed), built in 1893, for 283; Miss F. L. Reid, mistress
St. Augustine's road, built in 1904 & enlarged in 1910, for 360 boys, 360 girls & 400 infants; George William Ridgewell A.C.P., F.R.H.S. head master; Miss Kate Murphy, girls' mistress & Miss Johnston, infants' mist. Crossness (mixed & infants), opened in 1893, for 150 children; Miss F. Barnacle, mistress

Church of England (non-provided).

All Saints' (girls), Woolwich road, for 265 children;

Mrs. Kate Maycock, mistress

All Saints' (infants), for 184 children; Miss E. A.

Goodiff mistress Goodiff, mistress

BAILWAY STATIONS.

Abbey Wood, William Dixon, station master Belvedere, Station road, William Dixon, station master

BELVEDERE.

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Abbott James, 48 Bexley road
Alcock Lt.-Col. Alfd. William C.I.E.,
M.B., LL.D., F.R.S. 9 Erith road

Alcock Lt.-Col. Alfd. William C.I.E.,
M.B., LL.D., F.R.S. 9 Erith road

Barrett Rev. Robert John B.A.,
T.C.A. 9 Essenden road

Alcock Lt.-Col. Alfd. William C.I.E.,
M.B., LL.D., F.R.S. 9 Erith road

Barrett Rev. Robert John B.A.,
T.C.A. 9 Essenden road

Bayley Frederick, 3 Essenden road

Bayley John, 52 Picardy road
Beddle Mrs. The Oaks, Erith road
Beddle Mrs. Wynford, Heron hill
Beevers Harold, 4 Bedwell road

Stewart John R. insurance agent, I Manston villas, Crescent road
Stone Fredk. G. boot repr. Park lane
Stone Orlando E.frmr.Gt. Brooks end Stone Philip, frmr.Up.Gore End farm
Stoney Arth. watch maker, Station road
Storey Arth. watch maker, Station road
Storey Arth. watch maker, Station Right Chant, The Square. TN 39
Strogonoff F. teacher of music Right Watson & Carping Intelligence and control of the square of the squar Stone Fredk. G. boot repr. Park lane
Stone Orlando E.frmr.Gt. Brooks end
Stone Philip, frmr.Up.Gore End farm
Storey Arth. watch maker, Station rd
Strogonoff F. teacher of music, Briar
court, Gordon square

Court, Gordon square

Walker William Henry, movor engineer, Station road
Wastall Edward, wine & spirit merchant, The Square. T N 39
Watson & Co. agricultural, coal, corn
hay merchants, Church street.

Sturton & Waters, ironmongers, 9
Station road. T N 24
Summers Jn. aparts. 15 Gordon sq
Taylor Thos. Jn. grngrer. Church st
ThurgoodRegnld.linen drpr.Station rd Tumber Edward, confectioner, South Down house, The Square

incent Annie (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Margate road Vye & Son, grocers, The Square. T N 23

& hay merchants, Church street. Telephone No. 54
Westley Charlotte (Miss), apartmnts.
10 Prospect villas, Prospect road
Westminster Bank Ltd. (branch office) (S. P. Mortimer, manager)
(open 10 to 3; sat. 9 to 12), Station road (T N 77); head office,
41 Lothbury, London E C 2
White Annie (Mrs.), apartments,
Holland house, Albion road

Church street Church street
Working Men's Club (W. Clark, hon.
sec.), Public hall, Station road
Worthington Harry Edwd. M.B.O.S.,
L.B.O.P.Lond. physician & surgeon, medical officer & public
vaccinator, Birchington district,

geon, medical officer & public vaccinator, Birchington district, Isle of Thanet union, The Sycamores, Margate road. T N 6
Wraight Harry, fruiterer & greengrocer, Station road
Wright Annie (Miss), dress maker, 5
Partford villes Crescent road

Dartford villas, Crescent road

BIRCHOLT, see Brabourne.

BIRLING is a parish and village, at the foot of the chalk hills, 2 miles north-east from Malling station on BIRLING is a parish and village, at the foot of the chalk hills, 2 miles north-east from Malling station on the Swanley Junction and Maidstone section of the Southern railway, 2 south-west from Snodland station on the North Kent line, 8 south-west from Rochester and 7 north-west from Maidstone, in the Sevenoaks division of the county, Aylesford lathe, Larkfield hundred, petty sessional division and union of Malling, county court district of Maidstone, rural deanery of Malling, archdeaconry of Tonbridge and diocese of Rochester. Birling is watered by a small stream rising near Birling Place, and flowing into the Medway. The church of All Saints is a building of Kentish rag, principally Perpendicular in style, and has a tower containing a clock and 8 bells, and several stained windows, as well as memorials of the Nevill family: the church affords upwards of 400 sittings. The register dates from the year 1558. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £375, including residence and 11 acres of glebe, in the gift of the Marquess of Abergavenny, and held since 1916 by the Rev. Frank Trevelyan Snow M.A. of St. Catharine's College, Cambridge. Christ Church, LOWER BIRLING, was formed into a separate seclesiastical parish m January, 1911. The church, erected in 1893, is in the Early English style, and has 200 sittings. The site and burial ground were given by Rev. Canon Coulson M.A. of Guildford. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £322, in the gift of

trustees, and held since 1911 by the Rev. Andrew Pollak Williams Th.A.K.C. Percy Llewelyn Nevill esq. J.P. who is lord of the manor, and the Marquess of Abergavenny are the principal landowners. The soil is various, sand, clay and gravel; subsoil, stone and gravel. The area is 1,917 acres of land, a large proportion of which is devoted to the cultivation of fruit and hops. The area of the civil parish is 1,797 acres of land and 3 of water; rateable value, £3,344; the population in 1911 was 855, and in 1921, 922 in the civil and of the ecclesiastical parish in 1911, 387.

HAM HILL is in the parish, I mile east from the parish church.

Post & T. Office (messages may be telephoned from this office for treatment as express letters).—Sydney Peters, sub-postmaster. Letters through West Malling, which is the nearest money order office, 3 miles distant

Letters for Ham Hill should be addressed Snodland

Public Elementary Schools.

Birling (mixed), enlarged in 1882, for 80 children; Miss Ella Rose Braggar, mistress

Ham Hill, built in 1872, & will now hold 52 children; Miss Farr, Snodland, mistress Motor omnibuses run between Chatham & Malling

is a vicarage, net yearly value £322, in the gift of Carrier .- Wm. H. Pay, to Maidstone, daily except wed

Snodland, Kent.)

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Blumenfeld Ralph David, Birling Adams John, farmer, Westbury lodge Bates Charles, Bull P.H.
Beal George, smallholder
Calder James, farm bailiff to P. L.
Nevill esq. J.P. Home & Park irms
Ogilvy Miss. Park view
Ogilvy Mrs. Birling lodge
Padget Mrs. Birling Place
Padget Mrs. Birling Place
Puddephatt Edward John
Snow Rev. Frank Total Commence of the properties of the pro Puddepnatt Edward John

Snow Rev. Frank Trevelyan M.A.

"Gates Walter, farmer
(vicar of All Saints'), The Vicarage

*Williams Rev. Andrew Pollak Th.
A.K.C. (vicar of Christ Church),
The Vicarage

The Firs

Knell Charles, farmer

Davis James Vernon, poultry farmer

*Gates Walter, farmer

*Haisman James, farmer, Ham Hill
Herbert Alexander & Co. sand mers
Kirby Henry Richard, poultry farmer.

The Firs

Knell Charles, farmer

Norman Allan, builder

Peters Sydney, grocer, Post office

Rabjohn George Edward, gardener to

P. L. Nevill esq. J.P

Rust William, land steward to

Birling Manor estate

Wickham Walter, blacksmith

BISEOPSBOURNE is a parish on a feeder of the Stour, on the entrance of the Barham Downs, and about half a mile from the Dover road, with a station on the Elham Valley line of the Southern railway, and 2½ miles south from Bekesbourne station on the Chatham and Dover section of that railway and a miles south-east miles south from Bekesbourne station on the Chatham and Dover section of that railway, and 4 miles south-east from Canterbury. in the Canterbury division of the county, lathe of St. Augustine, Kinghamford hundred, petty sessional division of Wingham, union of Bridge, county court district of Canterbury, rural deanery of East Bridge, and archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury. The Nailbourne, a feeder of the Stour, which runs through the parish, rising in the hills above Folkestone, is an intermittent stream, flowing for a few months periodically about every five to seven ars, but from 1910 it has been flowing regularly. The church of St. Mary is of flint, in the Early English and later styles, and has a tower containing 4 bells: there is some stained glass, and in the chancel a mural monument with bust, erected in 1632 by Sir W. Cooper kt. to Richard Hooker M.A. (commonly known

as "the learned and judicious Hooker"), author of the celebrated "Ecclesiastical Polity," and some time fellow of Corpus Christi College, Oxford; he was rector of Bishopsbourne from 1595 till his death, Nov. 2nd, 1600: in 1890 a memorial window to Hooker was erected, and a lych gate was erected to his memory in 1911: the church was repaired and re-seated in 1872, at a cost of £1,600: there are 215 sittings. The register of baptisms and marriages dates from 1558; burials from 1571. The living is a rectory, net yearly value £505, with residence, in the gift of the Archbishop of Canterbury, and held since 1923 by the Rev. Walter Henry Trelawny Ashton-Gwatkin M.A. of King's College, Cambridge; it was formerly united to Barham, but was so d from it in 1845 by Order in Council. In the rectory garden there is a remarkable yew hedge, said by some to have been planted by Hooker. Bourne Park, the seat and property of Lt.-Col. Matthew Gerald Edward Bell O.B.E., J.P. who is lord of the manor. Charlton Place, the seat and property of John Cecil de Veel Tattersall esq. is half a mile south-east, and con-

tains a very fine saloon which was built for George IV.

It. Col. M. G. E. Bell O.B.E., J.P. the Marquess
Conyngham and J. C. de V. Tattersall esq. are the principal landowners. In Gorsley Wood, on the property of the Marquess Conyngham, are three tumuli, opened in Feb. 1882, and found to contain stone chests

The soil is learner arbeits.

Post Office.—Miss Edith Lucas, sub-postmistress. Letters through Canterbury. The nearest money order office is at Bridge. There is a telegraph office at Bishopsbourne station

Assistant Overseer & Clerk to Parish Council, Alexander Clements, Kingston, Canterbury opened in Feb. 1802, and found to contain stone chests holding human remains. The soil is loamy; subsoil, chalk. The chief crops are wheat, oats, barley and hops. The area is 2,018 acres of land and 5 of water; rateable value, £2,229; the population in 1921 was 304. Sexton, Ernest Nicholls.

Bisnopsourne station
Assistant Overseer & Clerk to Parish Council, Alexander Clements, Kingston, Canterbury
County Police, Frederick Honey, constable
Public Elementary School (mixed), erected in 1861, for
70 children; Miss Jean Dunbar Budd, mistress
Railway Station (Southern Railway), George Brown,
station master. station master

Marked thus * through Upper Hardres.

Marked thus † receive their letters through Kingston.

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

*Allen Lt.-Col. J. H. Gorseley house Ashton-Gwatkin Rev. Walter Henry Trelawny M.A. (rector), Rectory *Assheton Nicholas Radclyffe, White-

Daniel Miss, White cottage

tDerry John, Phessants hall Finch-Hatton Brig.-Gen. Edward Heneage C.M.G., D.S.O. Court lo

Gibbs Mrs. Melbourne house *Reeves Rear-Admiral Edward C.B.

Bursted manor Tattersall John Cecil de Veel, Charlton Place

beams

Bell Lt.-Col. Matthew Gerald Edwd.
O.B.E., J.P. Bourne park
Brook Henry, Forge cottage
Conrad Joseph, Oswalds
*Crowe Capt. Llewellyn, Juniper
Bough

Commercial.

Marked thus of arm 150 acres or over.
OAdams Julius John & Son, farmers.
Langham Park farm
Amos John, gardener to J. C. de V.
Tattersall esq
Bell Lt.-Col. Matthew COMMERCIAL.

Marked thus of farm 150 acres or over.

Oddams Julius John & Son, farmers,
Langham Park farm
Amos John, gardener to J. C. de V.

Tattersall eso

Commercial.

Huggett Albert, carpenter funds to the Huggett Albert, carpenter funds to the Huggett Albert, carpenter for the Huggett Albert, carpenter funds to the Huggett Langham Park farm

Amos John, gardener to J. C. de V.

Tattersall esq

Bell Lt.-Col. Matthew Gerald Edwd.

O.B.E., J.P. farmer, Lenhall farm

receive their letters De Chameroy Gaston Barthelemy, Birchett John, gardener to Joseph The Paddock Conrad esq

BLEAN.

Edward Brooks George, chimney sweep
Brown John Murray, farmer, Cold

Grown John Murray, farmer, Cold Harbour farm Bundock William, gamekeeper to Lt.-Col. M. G. E. Bell O.B.E., J.P. Clarry David, gamekeeper to Lt.-Col. M. G. E. Bell O.B.E., J.P. Cox E. (Mrs.), apartments, Ye Grove Friend John, farmer, Woodgate farm Hungatt Albert, expension.

Stroud Henry Edward, estate carpenter to Lt.-Col. M. G. E. Bell O.B.E., J.P.

BLACKHEATH is a suburb of London, which was included under the Local Government Act. 1888, in the county of London, and in the Lewisham Municipal will be found in Kelly's Post Office London Directory.

BLACKMANSTONE is a very small parish, 3 miles north from New Romney terminal station of a branch of the Southern railway, and 7 south-west from Hythe, consisting of one farmhouse and one cottage, in the Ashford division of the county, Worth hundred, lathe of Shepway, union, liberty and petty sessional division of Romney Marsh, county court district of Ashford, rural deanery of South Lympne, archdeaconry of Maidstone and diocese of Canterbury. The church has long been in ruins and scarcely any traces of it are now left. The living is a rectory, annexed with the sinecure

rectories of Eastbridge Chapel and Organswick to that rectories of Eastbridge Unaper and Organswick to that of Dymchurch. Arthur Finn esq. J.P. is the lord of the manor and principal landowner. The land is principally in pasture. The area is 297 acres of land and 3 of water; rateable vaue, £457; the population in 1921

Letters are received through New Romney. church is the nearest post, money order & telegraph office, about 2 miles distant

Carriers to Ashford.—Carey Brothers, pass through, tues. & fri

Hardy Laurence, grazier

Checksfield Albert, farmer Coombs Alfred Geo. Blue House farm

BLEAN (or SS. Cosmus and Damian-in-the-Blean) is a parish and the head of a union. The centre of the parish is 3 miles north-west from Canterbury. There is a "halt" on the Canterbury and Whitstable branch of the Southern railway. The high road from Canterbury to Whitstable passes through the parish, which has no village properly so called, but contains a large and scattered population; it is in the Canterbury division of the county, lathe of St. Augustine, hundred of Whitstable, petty sessional division, county court district, rural deanery, archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury. A brook flows past the church. The church of SS. Cosmus and Damian is of flint, in the Early English style, and contains a monument to members of the Boys family, of the time of Charles II. and James II. who then held the manor house now known as Hothe Court style, and contains a monument to members of the Boys family, of the time of Charles II. and James II. who then held the manor house now known as Hothe Court Farm, the remains of an ancient oak chancel screen, some fragments of old glass, and a tablet erected in 1920 to the memory of the men of this parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18: the church was restored and re-seated in 1866, and has a bell gable containing one bell: there are 200 sittings. The register dates from the year 1553. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £521, with residence, in the gift of the Master of Eastbridge Hospital, Canterbury, and held since 1921 by the Rev. Charles Edward Potts Antram. In 1919 22 acres of land near the church were purchased by public subscription and handed over to the Parish Council for conversion into a recreation ground, as a memorial to the men who fell in the Great War, 1914-18. There is a Wesleyan chapel here and a Baptist chapel at Tyler Hill. The charities include one of £2 10s. yearly, left in 1820 by Mrs. Leggett, of Blean, for bread, and Wootton's, of £5 9s. left in 1841 by Richard Charles Harris Wootton, of Blean, for the repair of his tomb, the surplus to be distributed annually in calico and flannel. The Master of Eastbridge Hospital is lord of the manor and principal landowner. The soil is partly light loam; subsoil, clay. The chief crops are wheat, barley &c. The area is 2,335 acres; rateable value, £3,458; population in 1921 was 601.

DENSTROUD is a hamlet in Blean Forest, 4 miles north-west from Canterbury. The woods under various names extend for four or five miles in different directions, and are watered by feeders of the Stour, which rise in them, and here and there are occasional clearings

Clerk to Parish Council & Assistant Overseer, Ernest G. Wood A.L.A.A. 21 Burgate street, Canterbury.

Parish Clerk, Henry G. Taylor.

Post Office.—Charles Holttum, sub-postmaster. Letters arrive from Canterbury. The nearest money order office is at St. Dunstan's street, Canterbury, & telegraph office is at Canterbury head office, 2 miles distant

Post Office, Tyler Hill.—Mrs. Clara Lowe, sub-post-mistress. Letters from Canterbury, which is the nearest money order & telegraph office, 3 miles distant Blean & Tyler Hill Halt, P. W. Pettyfer, station supt. Canterbury

BLEAN RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.

The parishes in the District are the same as in the Union, except Herne Bay & Whitstable.

Council meets on alternate tuesdays at the Poor Law Institution, Herne, at 2 p.m.

Chairman, Allington Collard J.P. Reculver

Officials.

Clerk, William Thomas Brooks (solicitor), 39 Castle st Canterbury

Treasurer, Arth. S. Blunt, Lleyds Bank Ltd. Canterbury

Medical Officer of Health, A. M. Watts M.D., D.P.R. Pierremont hall, Broadstairs

Sanitary Inspector, R. Miles, Herne Street, Herne Surveyor, F. A. Ward, Eddington, Herne Bay

750

. 9 ents.

n rd hon.

J.S., SUL ıblic. rict.

yca-"PATI-

er, 5

ollak J.P. ber-

il is avel. n of 10ps.

n in d of

the this hich

Miss

ren: wed

sket ents,

Hill ırm

er to to

time Nov. was nory d in The

of

558; early rch-Rev. ing's ham, ıncil. edge.

urne erald anor.

Butler William, grocer

Burden Charles, blacksmith Burgess Walter, shepherd to A.

Moore David Ernest, butcher

Paine John, Fleur-de-lis hotel Smith Edward, grazier, Bean villa KELLY'S

Tiltmen John, farm bailiff to Mr. T. W. Paine, Great Field farm Webb William, looker to Mr. J. Bourne, The Bush

Wheeler Amos Arth.coal mer.&carrier Wheeler Annie (Mrs.), stationer & sub-postmistress

Board day, every fourth thursday at the Board room at the Poor Law Institution, Bridge, at 12 noon. The Assessment Committee meets on the first saturday

in each month at 21 Burgate street, Canterbury, at

in each month at 21 Burgare states, 2 p.m.

The Union comprises the following parishes, viz.—
Adisham, Barham, Bekesbourne, Bishopsbourne,
Bridge, Chartham, Fordwich, Harbledown, Ickham,
Kingston, Littlebourne, Lower Hardres, Milton,
Nackington, Patrixbourne, Petham, St. Nicholas
Hospital, Stodmarsh, Thanington Without, Upper
Hardres, Waltham, Wickhambreaux & Womenswold.
The area of the union is 41,797 acres; rateable value, The area of the union is 41,797 acres; rateable value, £73,279; the population in 1911 was 11,194 & in 1921 was 11,236 was 11,236 Chairman of the Board of Guardians, Percy Champion

Charrman of the Board of Guardians, Ferry Champion Clerk to the Guardians, Thomas Louis Collard, Bridge; & 21 Burgate st.Canterbury (attendance on saturdays) Treasurer, Arthur S. Blunt, Lloyds Bank Ltd. (C. & C. branch), Canterbury Collector to the Guardians & Relieving Officer, William

Hutchings Wass, Bridge Vaccination Officer, William Hutchings Wass, Bridge

Medical Officers & Public Vaccinators, No. 1 district, Henry Octavius Preston L.R.C.P.Edin., M.R.C.S.Eng. Henry Octavius Preston L.R.C.P.Edin., M.R.C.S.Eng. Lower Bridge street, Canterbury (public vaccinator); No. 2 district, Hugh George Rashleigh L.R.C.P.Lond., M.R.C.S.Eng. Chartham; No. 3 district, Henry Octavius Preston L.R.C.P.Edin. Lower Bridge street, Canterbury; No. 4 district, Edward Griffith Freeman Morris M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Edin., Littlebourne; No. 5 district, William L'Estrange Mathews M.R.C.S.

Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. Elham The Poor Law Institution is a structure of red built in 1835, to hold 200 inmates; Percy William Honney, master; Rev. Hubert Knight M.A. chaplain; Arthur Thomas Wilson M.B., B.Ch. medical officer; Mrs. Honney, matron

BRIDGE REGISTRATION DISTRICT.

Superintendent Registrar, Henry Fielding, 15 Burgate street, Canterbury; deputy, Edward H. Sladden, Sylvan house, Worthgate place, Canterbury Registrar of Births & Deaths, Bridge district, William Hutchings Wass, Bridge; deputy, Percy Wm. Honney Registrar of Marriages, Percy William Honney, Bridge; deputy, W. J. Martin, Chartham

Public Elementary School (mixed & infants), for the joint parishes of Bridge & Patrixbourne, for 110 boys & girls & 86 infants; William John Billing, master; Miss M. Bell, infants' mistress

The school is under the control of the Kent Education

Committee

Carriers to Canterbury pass through daily
There is a frequent service of motor omnibuses, which
run through from Canterbury to Dover & Folkestone
Railway Station (Southern R.), George Brown, station

BRIDGE UNION.

BRIDGE is a parish and head of a union, giving its name to a rural deanery; it derives its name from its situation in a valley on the Roman and modern road to name to a rural deanery; it derives its name from its situation in a valley on the Roman and modern road to Dover, at a bridge over a feeder of the Stour, with a station on the Canterbury and Folkestone line of the Southern railway, and is 1½ miles south from Bekesbourne station on the same system, and 3 south-east from Canterbury, in the Canterbury division of the county, lathe of St. Augustine, hundred of Bridge and Petham, petty sessional division of St. Augustine's, Canterbury, county court district of Canterbury, rural deanery of East Bridge and archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury. The village is lighted with gas by a local limited company. The church of St. Peter is of flint, in the Norman style, with some additions of the Early English period, and has a tower with spire, containing a clock and 4 bells: the windows are stained: within a recess is a recumbent effigy of a man in robes, in low relief: the church was repaired and partly rebuilt about 1860, and affords 350 sittings, 80 being free. The register dates from the year 1565. The living is a vicarage, annexed to the vicarage of Patrixbourne, joint net yearly value £330, with 38 acres of glebe and resing the cit of the Marnusce Conventage and partly reliables. vicarage, annexed to the vicarage of Patrixbourne, joint net yearly value £330, with 38 acres of glebe and resilence, in the gift of the Marquess Conyngham, and held ince 1897 by the Rev. Hubert Knight M.A. of Christ's College, Cambridge, who resides at Patrixbourne. A war memorial was erected in 1920 by public subscription in the north-east of the churchyard, to the memory of 13 men of the parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18. The Wesleyan chapel, built in 1894, is of corrugated iron and wood, and seats 150 persons. The principal landowners are the Marquess Conyngham, who is lord of the manor, Earl Sondes and Lt.-Col. Matthew Gerald Edward Bell. The soil is chalky; subsoil chalk. The chief crops are wheat, barley, oats and soil chalk. The chief crops are wheat, barley, oats and hops. The area is 1,171 acres; rateable value, £3,517;

Barden John, farm bailiff to Messrs. | Else Albert, grazier, White house E. & F. Finn, Brenzett Place farm Bedwell Richd. Whiting, wheelwright Haisell Joseph, shopkeeper

the population in 1921 was 699. Sexton, George Prickett.

Post, M. O., T. & T. E. D. Office.—Bichard Castle, sub-postmaster. Letters through Canterbury

Bridge Volunteer Fire Brigade; engine house, Plough & Harrow P.H.; consists of a Merryweather manual engine & about 1,200 feet of hose; Charles Wills, lieut. & sec.; number of men, 10

Assistant Overseer & Clerk to the Parish Council, Ernest G. Wood A.L.A.A. 21 Burgate street, Canterbury

BRIDGE RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.

The parishes in the District are the same as form the Union.

Council meets at the Guardians' Board room, Bridge every fourth thursday at 11 o'clock.

Chairman, Percy Champion, Ickham

Officials.

Clerk, Thomas Louis Collard. Bridge

Treasurer, Arthur S. Blunt, Lloyds Bank Ltd. (C. & C. branch), Canterbury

Medical Officer of Health, James John Day O.B.E.,
M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P., D.P.H. 52 Whitstable road,
Canterbury

Building Surveyor, Thomas Louis Collard, Bridge

Building Surveyor, Thomas Louis Collard, Bridge

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Anderson George Knox D.L., J.P.
Bridge Hill house

Paird Capt. H. H. C. 2 Sefton villas
Beatson Mrs. Riverside
Blundell Herbert, Ivy house
Collard Thos. Louis, Little Bridge pl
Cowell George, Vine cottages
Jones Mrs. Rosedale villa
Mummery Frank, 4 The Terrace.
TN 3
Newman Miss C.A. Alexander house
Parker Mrs. Bourne lodge
Penn Mrs. Ethel, Bridge pl. TN 8
Ramsay Misses, East Bridge house.
TN 4
Sperling Misses, Rose bank

Tassell James, Weston villa
Tassell James, Veston villa
Tassell James, Weston villa
Tassell James, Weston villa
Tassell James, Veston villa
Tassell James, Veston villa
Tassell James, Veston villa
Tassell James, Veston
Towline
Towline Arthur Janes, baker
Collard Thomas Louis, clerk to the
Churchyard Henry, boot & shoe dealr
Collard Thomas Louis, clerk to the
Churchyard Henry, boot & shoe dealr
Collard Thomas Louis, to the Bridge bard of guardians & Secon bridge union, to Bridge union,

Sperling Misses, Rose bank

Bridgland Albt. ouilder, Portland ter Gilbert Sidney, blacksmith

Hawkins George, draper
Hogben Frederick John, saddler
Honney Percy William, deputy registrar of births, deaths & marriages
for Bridge district

Heading Room (Rd. Dean, caretaker)
Richards Phillip, grocer
Sneller Aubrey James, motor garage.

T N 12
Stone George, dairyman

Lorent Heading Room (Rd. Dean, caretaker)
Richards Phillip, grocer
T N 12
Stone George, dairyman

Jones Albert Edward, brick maker Sutton Jane (Mrs.), Woodman's Arm National Farmers' Union (Canterbury P.H. Pett Bottom (letters through branch) (Spencer Collard, sec.), Lower Hardres, Canterbury) Great Pett

Stone George, aarryman Sutton Jane (Mrs.), Woodman's Arm National Farmers' Union (Canterbury P.H. Pett Bottom (letters through Great Pett Taylor Henry & Son, coal merchants

Punnett Thomas, hair dresser

Reading Room (Rd. Dean, caretaker) Wass William Hutchings, collector to

Nelson Thomas, laundry
Price Henry George, grocer.
Prickett George, beer retailer

Tutt Mary (Mrs.), dress maker
Tutt Mary (Mrs.), dress maker
Holness esq. Great Pett farm

the guardians, relieving & vaccination officer & registrar of births & deaths for Bridge district, Fairview Watson John Thomas, Red Lion P.H

Sutton Jane (Mrs.), Woodman's Arms

Vest Charles, butcher. T N 20

P.H. Pett Bottom (letters through
Lower Hardres, Canterbury)

Taylor Henry & Son, coal merchants

Tutt Mary (Mrs.), dress maker

Tutt Mary (Mrs.), dress maker

TN 7
Wye Robert, house & insurance agent, & asst. overseer for Patrixbourne

BRIDGEN, see Bexley.

BROADSTAIRS with ST. PETER'S.

BROADSTAIRS, anciently called "Bradstow," is a pleasant little town and watering place, with a station on the South Eastern section of the Southern railway, 2½ miles north from Ramsgate, 77 from London and 3½ south-east from Margate, situated on a small bay on the eastern coast of the Isle of Thanet, in the rural deanery of Westbere and archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury; it was from 1879 under a Local Board, but is now governed under the Local Government Act, 1894 (56 and 57 Vict. c. 73), by a District Council of twelve members. In pursuance of an Order of the County Council, made in 1894, the name of the Urban District was altered to Broadstairs and St. Peter's, and now comprises four wards—Central, Pierremont, Kingsgate and St. Peter's. The modern extension of the town of Broadstairs has a fine promenade on the summit of low cliffs, but in the older part the streets are narrow and tortuous. Both Broadstairs and St. Peter's are lighted with gas and by electricity by a company, and supplied with water from works erected in 1859 and extended in 1876, and again in 1903 and 1907 at a cost of about £50,000, the property of the Urban District Council; the water is obtained from adits in the chalk extending about 1½ miles inland. The ecclesiastical parish was formed out of St. Peter's on Sept. 27, 1850. The parish church of the Holy BROADSTAIRS, anciently called "Bradstow," is a | lege, Dublin. The Roman Catholic church, St. Peter's on Sept. 27, 1850. The parish church of the Holy Trinity, erected in 1840, is of flint with stone facings in the Early English style, and has a tower containing a clock and one bell: the addition of the north and south aisless was completed in 1915: there are 650 sittings. The register of baptisms dates from the year 1850. The living was declared a rectory Dec. 6, 1867, net yearly value £270. with residence, built in 1870, in the gift of the vicar of St. Peter's, and held since 1909 by the Rev. Lewis Lanning Edwards M.A. of Trinity Col-

lege, Dublin. The Roman Catholic church, St. Peter's Park road, is dedicated to Our Lady Star of the Sea. The Baptist chapel, in High street, founded in 1790, was restored in 1900, and seats 250 persons. The Baptist chapel, in Queen's road, built in 1908 at a cost of £2,000, is an edifice of brick with stone dressings, in the Gothic style, from designs by Mr. E. E. Moody, architect: it includes a clock tower, and will seat about 450 persons: the old chapel alongside, built in 1897, is now used as a Sunday school. There is also a Congregational chapel, erected in 1876, with 350 sittings; a Wesleyan Methodist chapel and a preaching room belonging to the Brethren. Bleak House, standing in a prominent position on the cliff, is stated to be associated ing to the Brethren. Bleak House, standing in a prominent position on the cliff, is stated to be associated with the novel, "Bleak House," of Charles Dickens. There is a bathing establishment and libraries, as well as marine villas and many boarding houses, and several good hotels, including the Grand and the Royal Abion. York gate, an ancient arch of flintwork, once forming part of the defences of the place, was built by George Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to and processed in the Silvanov Cullwar about 12 to a second cullwar part of the defences of the place, was built by George Cullmer about 1540, and repaired in 1705 by Sir John Henniker bart; the portcullis and gates have disappeared; near it are the remains of a chapel dedicated to Our Lady of Bradstow and once containing an image held in great veneration by mariners, who were wont to salute it in passing by lowering their sails. The area of the Urban District, which includes the parish of St. Peter Extra, is 3.030 acres: rateable value, £03.371; the population in 1921 was 15,471. The population of the Urban District wards in 1921 was—Central, 4.565; Kingsgate, 2.878; Pierremont, 4.328, and St. Peter's, 3,700. The population of Holy Trinity ecclesiastical parish in 1911 was 4,779.

Parish Clerk, William Harman, Tunis row

OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS,

Broadstairs Branch Post, M. O., T. & T. E. D. Office, St. Peter's road.—Alfred Ernest Richardson, overseer in charge. Telegraph office open on sundays from

8.30 to 10 a.m

Town Sub-Post, M. O. & Telephone Call Office, York street.—Edward James Fairley, sub-postmaster.
Telegrams are dispatched but not delivered

URBAN DISTRICT COUNCIL.

Offices, Pierremont hall, Broadstairs.

Days of meeting, 1st monday in the month at 7 p.m.

Members.

Chairman, Harry Bing J.P. Deputy Chairman, E. S. Oak-Rhind.

Central Ward. Harry Bing J.P Henry Waymouth

Fredk. Wm. George Weeks

Pierremont Ward.

Samuel Nash Mrs. Bethea Wood Robert Harvey Bettridge

Kingsgate Ward. Edwin Scoby Oak-Rhind Lionel Herbert Snowden

Charles Spence.
Fitzgerald Rev. Char Churchill Bidgeway M.A., J.P

St. Peter's Ward.

Jsph. Augustine Forde J.P | Thomas Alfred Pemble

Officials.

Officials.

Clerk, Lionel A. Skinner, Pierremont hall
Accountant, F. E. Hill, Pierremont hall
Treasurer, Henry Ernest Wyatt, Lloyds Bank, 42 High st
Medical Officer of Health, Alexander Minter Watts M.D.,
B.S., M.B.C.S., L.R.C.P.Lond., D.P.H.Irel. Pierremont hall

LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.

Surveyor & Waterworks Engineer, Howard Hurd, Pierremont hall

Sanitary Inspector, John Dain, Pierremont hall Collector of General District & Water Rates, William H. White, Pierremont hall

PUBLIC ESTABLISHMENTS

Broadstairs Masonic Hall, Alexandra road Broadstairs & St. Peter's Urban District Council Fire Brigade Station, St. Peter's road, A. Bates, chief

officer County Police Station, Gladstone road, Horace Ivo

Fowle, inspector, 2 sergeants & 7 constables
Droit Office, John Thomas Bones, harbour master
Isle of Thanet Joint Hospital Board's Isolation Hospital,
St Peter's Extra, John Christopher Durston M.R.C.S.
Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. medical officer: Miss H. K.

Repton, matron Shipwrecked Fishermen & Mariners' Royal Benevolent

See Advt. Index

PUBLIC OFFICERS.

Assistant Overseer & Collector of Poor Rate, G. T. Hook, Overseer's office, St. Peter's road
Clerk to Broadstairs Sub-Committee of Kent Local
Pension Committee, Lionel A. Skinner, Pierremont hall
Assessor & Collector of King's Taxes for St. Peter's
Extra & Intra, A. Jenner, Ivydene, Albion road, St.
Peter's Peter's

Medical Officer & Public Vaccinator, Broadstairs District, Thanet Union, Ronald Morton Liddell M.B., Ch.B., L.R.C.P. & S.Edin., L.R.F.P.S.Glas. Wilverley, St.

924 Kellijs Dwedin

Podmore John Herbert, in Lymons. T N 18 Brenchley Poole Elijah, boot ma. Maidstone rd Reader Ernest, hop grower, Readwood Reeve Geo. S. grocer, Commercial rd Sealy Francis Marmaduke M.R.C.S. Eng., L.S.A.Lond. physician & sur-geon, & medical officer of Capel geon, & medical officer of Capel district of Tonbridge union, Aycliffe, Maidstone road. T N 11

Sharp Henry Herbert, grocer Simmons George, farmer, Park farm Sinden Thomas, market gardener Skelton Bros. hoop mas. Maidstone rd Skinner Frederick Richard, tailor, Commercial road

Skinner Herbert John, farmer & hop

grower, Beltring farm
Smith W. H. & Sons, news agents,
Railway station
Springett Stanley, motor engineer,
Maidstone road

Summers Walter, dairyman, Mount Pleasant road

Ashford, half a mile south from the Bekesbourne station on the Faversham and Dover section of the Southern railway, and 3 miles south-east from Canterbury; it is in the Canterbury division of the county, lathe of St. Angustine, hundred of Bridge and Petham, union of St. Angustine, hundred of Bridge are division of Horne, county court district of Canterbury, rural deanery of East Bridge, archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury. The church

archaeaconry and diocese of Canterbury. The church of St. Mary, a fine structure of the Norman period, is of flint with stone dressings, and has a tower with spire containing a clock and 3 bells: there are some stained windows and monuments to the Conyngham

Swan Daniel, farm bailiff to Kent Hop, Fruit & Stock Farms Ltd. Badswell Park farm

Syrett H. (Mrs.), shopkeeper Taylor Thomas, farmer & hop grower, Rhoden farm. T N 4
Thompson John, head gardener to F.
T. Kingsley esq
Tickner Fredk. hoop ma. Station rd

Tickner Fredk. hoop ma. Station rd Tickner Reuben, hoop ma. Station rdd Uings Thomas, baker, Station road Waghorn A. (Mrs.), farmer & hop grower, Maidstone road Waghorn Chas. beer ret.Maidstone rd

Waghorn Jn. carrier, Maidstone road Waghorn Sydney, carrier, Commercial road

Walker James Albt. Kent Arms P.H Wallis James, shopkeeper, & sub-post office, Queen street Watchous Alfred, n

motor engineer. Commercial road PATRIXBOURNE (or Patricksbourne) is a parish and village, pleasantly situated in a healthy country, the Lesser Stour running through the village, which is three-quarters of a mile from the road from Canterbury to Ashford, half a mile south from the Bekesbourne station

farmer, Sunderland Joseph L. farmer, War-y rington place Commercial road. T No stone rd Swan Daniel, farm bailiff to Kent Watkinson William, motor engineer, Commercial road. T No

Watson Alfred Henry, fruiterer, Commercial road

Watson F. G. Railway hotel
Webb Albert, saddler, Commercial rd
Wellbeloved Wilfred Henry, butcher,
Station road. T N 18
Weller William Horace, builder, Church road

Church road
Wells Alfred, farm bailiff to J. H.
Waghorn esq. High Lees
Wells Wm. dairyman, Maidstone rd
White Wm.John, tailor, Maidstone rd
Wiffen Walter, confr. Commercial rd
Wood Frederick, plumber

Wright Albert, manure merchant, Paddock Wood house Yeomans Levy, photographer, Pear-

son's terrace Young Harold, blcksmth. Maidstone rd Young Wm. R. baker, Commercial rd

that of Bridge annexed, joint net yearly value £330, with 33 acres of glebe and residence, in the gift of the Marquess Conyngham, and held since 1897 by the Rev. Hubert Knight M.A. of Christ's College, Cambridge. Bifrons, the property of the Marquess Conyngham, who is lord of the manor, lay impropriator and chief landowner, is row occupied by Col. Hon. Milo George Talbot C.B.: it is a handsome mansion of stone, standing in a finely-timbered park of 230 acres.

standing in a finely-timbered park of 230 acres. Higham, the seat of Count Louis Zborowski, is a modern mansion of Portland stone, having porticos and columns with carved capitals. The soil is loam; sub-soil, chalk and gravel. The chief crops are hops and

wheat. The area is 1,559 acres; rateable value, £2,357; the population of the civil parish in 1921 was 232, and of the ecclesiastical parish in 1911, 228

Parish Clerk, John Foreman.

Letters through Canterbury. Bridge is the near money order & telegraph office, 11 miles distant Bridge is the nearest The children of this parish attend school at Bridge for the joint parishes of Bridge & Patrixbourne

stained windows and monuments to the Conyngham family: the church has 180 sittings. At the east end of the churchyard is a memorial, erected by public subscription, to six men connected with this parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18. The register of baptisms and burials dates from the year 1556; marriages from 1560. The living is a vicarage, with

Bridge)

Mount Henry Herbt. Patrixbourne lo
Ronald Mrs. Bifrons cottage. T N
Bridge 15

Palbot Col. Hon. Milo George C.B.
Bifrons. T N Bridge 10

Marked thus o farm 150 acres or over.
Chester Walter, farm bailiff to Count
Louis Zborowski, Higham
Howard Edward, farm bailiff to C.
Petley & Co. Shepherd's close
Rett Albert, head gardener
Hon. M. C. Thead gardener

Miller William, Renville (letters direct from Canterbury)
Mount Spencer William, farmer & hop grower, Hode farm or Petley C. & Co. farmers, Shepherd's close
Poland John, head gamekeers
Hon. M. C. Thead gardener

Hon. M. C. T

BAST PECKHAM is a large straggling village and parish, 2½ miles north from Paddock Wood station on the main line of the Southern railway, 2 north-west from Yalding station on the Strood and Paddock Wood Yalding station on the Strood and Paddock Wood section of the same railway, 6 north-east from Ton-bridge, 8 west-south-west from Maidstone and 33 from London: it is in the Sevenoaks division of the county, lathe of Aylesford, Twyford and Littlefield hundreds, county court district of Maidstone, petty sessional division, union and rural deanery of Malling, arch-deaconry of Tonbridge and diocese of Rochester. The navigable Medway passes through the parish and has a wharf at Branbridges. The church of St. Michael is of stone, chiefly in the Perpendicular style, and has a of stone, chiefly in the Perpendicular style, and has a tower containing 6 tells: the chancel was restored in 1855, and the remainder of the church in 1863: there are three memorials to the Cook family and three to the Twysden family, and some remains of ancient stained glass: in 1917 a new altar and reredos was erected in memory of Lt.-Col. Cook, and the aisle was converted into a chapel: the exterior of the church was the companied by required in 1912 and the church was converted into a chapel: the exterior of the church was thoroughly repaired in 1913, and the churchyard was enlarged by the addition of a quarter of an acre: in 1921 a lych gate was erected in memory of the men connected with this parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18: the church has 400 sittings. The register dates from the year 1558. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £655, with residence and 8 acres of glebe, in the gift of the Dean and Chapter of Canterbury, who are the rectors, and held since 1911 by the Rev. Geoffrey Charles Edward Byley M.A., Mus.Bac. of Trinity College, Oxford. Holy Trinity is an ecclesiastical parish, formed July 28th, 1843; the church,

erected in 1842, is of stone in the Perpendicular style, erected in 1842, is of stone in the Perpendicular style, and has a turret containing a clock and 2 bells: the church was restored in 1892 at a cost of about £800, and in 1900 a choir vestry was added. In 1919 a memorial was erected in the churchyard to 43 men of this parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18. The register dates from the year 1843. The living is a of this parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18. The register dates from the year 1843. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £228, with residence, in the gift of the vicar of East Peckham, and held since 1921 by the Rev. Robert A. White, of St. Aidans. There are Wesleyan and Baptist chapels. Roydon Hall is the residence of R. M. Cook esq. J.P. Henry Thomas Pearson esq. is lord of the manor. Lord Oranmore and Browne K.P., P.C. Leonard Wheeler esq. H. B. Gardener esq. Messrs. Simmons Brothers and Messrs. Allen Brothers are the principal landowners. The soil is clay and loamy: subsoil, various. The chief crops are hops. and loamy; subsoil, various. The chief crops are hops, wheat, beans and fruit. Great quantities of hops are grown here. The area is 3,373 acres of land and 38 of water; rateable value, £10,775; the population in 1921 was 2,067.

The population of the ecclesiastical parishes in 1911 was, St. Michael (parish church), 324; Holy Trinity,

1,841.
The Mill stream flows into the river Medway near Little Mill.

BELTRING is 2 miles south from Yalding station; Bullen, 2 south-west; Bush, 2 west; Hale Street, 1 south; Little Mill, 2½ south; The Pound, 2 south; Snoll Hatch, 21 south.

Parish Clerk, St. Michael's, William Waghorn. Parish Clerk, Holy Trinity, Edward Johnson.